
UPATED 10:30 a.m. 1/12/22 

 

FACILITIES SUBCOMMITTEE MEETING 

Gilroy Unified School District – via Zoom teleconference 

      9 a.m. Friday, Jan. 14, 2021 

 

1.  

ITEM PAGE # 

Time certain, 9 a.m.: Nate Smith-Ide and Kevin from SPURR (follow-up on solar discussion) 

A. Approval of minutes: Dec. 10, 2021 1 

 

2. FACILITIES & NEW CONSTRUCTION (PAUL NADEAU) 

 

ITEM SITE VENDOR COST 
FUNDING 
SOURCE 

PAGE # 

A. Renewal of plotter lease M&O office E-Arc $4,500 Measure E 
3 

B. Speed limiters for 

playground equipment 

Rod Kelley ES  
& El Roble ES 

SPEC $5,545.10 RRM 
12 

C. Topo survey of playground  Luigi Aprea ES RJA $4,100 General Fund 
16 

D. Geotechnical inspections Luigi Aprea ES Earth Systems $12,435 General Fund 
20 

E. Contractor application 

processing fee 

 N/A Colbi Tech Inc. $10,000 Measure E 
32 

F. CEQA oversight for 

playground installation 

Luigi Aprea ES School Site 
Solutions, Inc. 

$7,500 General Fund 
33 

 

3. MAINTENANCE (DAN MCAULIFFE) 

 

ITEM SITE VENDOR COST 
FUNDING 
SOURCE 

PAGE # 

A. Portable building animal 

exclusion work 

Gilroy HS Animal Damage 
Management 

$13,895 RRM 39 

B. Additional intercom exterior 

speaker  

Luigi Aprea ES Johnson 
Electronics 

$2,249 RRM 51 

C. Pool water chemical 

controllers 

Christopher HS Knorr Systems 
**Expecting 2 
other quotes 

$42,070.15 RRM 53 

D. Slat fence replacement for 

kindergarten area 

Eliot ES  Architectural 
Systems, Inc. 

$6,430 
*Option for 
slat upgrade 
+$926.00 
 

RRM 58 



UPATED 10:30 a.m. 1/12/22 

 

E.  Additional fencing and    

improvements 

Swanston 
Preschool 

Architectural 
Systems, Inc. 

Front/Street 
only $5,798 
*Option to 
add side 
area 
+$4,361.00 

RRM 61 

F. Additional fencing and gates  Christopher HS Architectural 
Systems, Inc 

$58,602 Christopher HS 
site funds and 
RRM 

67 

G. Locker door replacements 

and repair parts for boys and 

girls lockers 

Christopher HS  Shiffler 
Equipment Sales 

$10,074.42 RRM 69 

 

 

OTHER PROJECTS/FACILITY ISSUES AT SITES  

 

SITES 

ANTONIO DEL BUONO ES BROWNELL MS CHRISTOPHER HS 

ELIOT ES SOLORSANO MS GECA 

EL ROBLE ES SOUTH VALLEY MS GILROY HS 

GLEN VIEW ES  MT. MADONNA HS 

LAS ANIMAS ES   

LUIGI APREA ES DISTRICT OFFICE  

ROD KELLEY ES   

RUCKER ES   

 

 

NEXT MEETING: 9 A.M. FRIDAY, Feb. 4, 2021 



 

 

 

FACILITIES SUBCOMMITTEE MEETING 

MINUTES FROM DEC. 10, 2021 

 

Present 

Debbie Flores 

Mark Good 

Dan McAuliffe 

Alvaro Meza 

Paul Nadeau 

Anna O’Connor 

James Pace 

Aurelio Rodriguez 

 

Meeting called to order: 9:01 a.m.  

 

1.  

ITEM 

A. Approval of minutes: Nov. 19, 2021 

• Mark first moved to approve. Dr. Flores seconded.  

• All approved 
 

 

2. FACILITIES & NEW CONSTRUCTION (PAUL NADEAU) 

 

ITEM SITE VENDOR COST FUNDING SOURCE 

A. Architectural proposal for playground Luigi ES Aedis  $91,876 General Fund 

 
MINUTES 

• Paul will put together an explanation for Dr. Flores’ Sunday report about why this part of the project costs more 
than $90K and outline the full scope of the project.  

• This project will require oversight from the Division of the State Architect (DSA).  

• The overall budget for $900K for this project.  

• Dr. Flores: This playground installation is more complicated than the recently installation of playgrounds. Those 
were put in in existing playground space. This is playground is being created, from scratch in a different part of 
the campus.  

• Mark requests as many details as possible for the board to show the full scope of the project.  

• Alvaro and Paul met with Gary Heap, of the City of Gilroy, to share the plans.  

• The plan is to bring this to the board in the second meeting in January.  

• Next steps: Paul will submit report to Dr. Flores for the board, including as many details of project as possible 
and a timeline.  

 

B. 2022 FSC meeting dates 
INFORMATION ONLY 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 

 
MINUTES 

• These are the proposed meeting dates for the 2022.  

• Dr. Flores would like to include regular visits to South Valley MS. 
 

 

  

Page 1

namartinez
Typewritten Text
1a

namartinez
Typewritten Text

namartinez
Typewritten Text



 

 

3. MAINTENANCE (DAN MCAULIFFE) 

 

ITEM SITE VENDOR COST FUNDING SOURCE 

A. Remove elevated dirt area at playground Glen View ES EF&S Concrete $9,500 RRM 
 

 
MINUTES 

• This is an area that is bounded by concrete edging. It is a trip hazard that should be removed. The curb will be 
removed and the elevated area will be graded to the same level of the rest of the grass field.  

• This was the area that was being considered for a garden at one time. 

• Next steps: This will go to the board for approval.  
 

B. Installation of wheel stops in parking lot Mt. Madonna 
HS 

EF&S Concrete $6,100 RRM 

 
MINUTES 

• Vehicles have been gathering here on the weekends to spin out and speed through the area.  

• These wheel stops would be the least expensive option to help deter this behavior. Speed bumps would be 
another option but they are about three times the cost of wheel stops.  

• Next steps: This will go to the board for approval. 
 

C. Tennis court resurfacing Gilroy HS DRYCO $96,406 RRM 

D. Tennis court resurfacing Christopher HS DRYCO $66,778 RRM 
 

 
MINUTES 

• This bid was the only one received before this meeting. Two more bids are expected. 

• These courts are frequently used at both schools. Christopher HS also has a lot of issues with birds in the area, 
which may lead to proposals for dealing with the animals in the future.  

• Gilroy HS has resurfaced before but it’s been more than 10 years. This is not the extensive overall this site 
proposed earlier this year but this option will extend the life of the court for several years.   

• Mark: Are any outside groups involved in maintaining these courts, as they have in the past?  
o Outside groups have not been renting the courts through Facilitron. The majority of use is by students. 

• Next steps: The lowest will go to the board for approval.   
 

 

 

Meeting adjourned: 9:23 a.m.  

 

NEXT MEETING: Friday, Jan. 14, 2022 

Page 2



On-Site Services Agreement
Agreement ID:  249-2853-R

This On-Site Services Agreement (together with the attached Order Form and Terms and Conditions, the “Agreement”) is 
between:

Company
ARC Document Solutions, LLC
12657 Alcosta Blvd., Suite 200 
San Ramon, CA 94583
(925) 949-5100
Account Exec Name:  Jeriel Aguilar
Account Exec Email:  Jeriel.aguilar@e-arc.com

Client
Gilroy Unified School District ("Client")
220 Swanson Lane 
Gilroy, CA  95020
Contact Name:  Paul Nadeau
Contact Email:  paul.nadeau@gilroyunified.org
Contact Phone:  (408) 807-1346

Page 3

namartinez
Typewritten Text
2a



On-Site Services Agreement    |    Agreement ID:  249-2853-R    |    Data Capture (Rev. 2.5-2021) CONFIDENTIAL     2

Order Form

Effective Date: 1/10/2022

Term: 12 Months

ARC will provide the equipment, software, and/or services in the sections and at the rates specified below. The Term of this Agreement shall 
commence on the Effective Date. Thereafter, the Term of this Agreement shall be automatically renewed for additional twelve (12) month periods 
unless otherwise terminated by either party, in accordance with the Agreement.

Equipment (Place)

On-Site Service Rates

NOTE: Large Format Media Rates Include Ink/Toner, Service & up to 20# Bond Rolls (“Standard Consumables”); Installation, Standard Delivery, & 
Training charges are included unless otherwise specified. One free delivery of media and supplies per month. Subsequent orders of included 
supplies will incur a delivery charge.

Client Location Where Equipment Will Reside

 

Quantity     Equipment  Monthly  Unit 
Base Price

Monthly Total 
Base Price

1 OCE PlotWave 360 SN: 330808342 $250.00 $250.00

        Service Unit of 
Measurement Price

    Large Format Plotting SqFt $0.1250

        Address City State Zip Code Country

     220 Swanson Lane Gilroy CA 95020 United States

Page 4



On-Site Services Agreement    |    Agreement ID:  249-2853-R    |    Data Capture (Rev. 2.5-2021) CONFIDENTIAL     3

Terms and Conditions
1. On-Site Services. On-Site Services shall include the following:

A. Equipment. 
i. ARC will manage the assigned print equipment, listed above (“Equipment”), operating at designated Client Locations.
ii. ARC will be responsible for parts and labor associated with the installation, management and operation of such Equipment.
iii. Per the terms of Section 7.C below, ARC will, in conjunction with Client, mutually agree as to which equipment of Client will transition 

to this Agreement and the timing thereof, as well as the Client equipment to be discarded. 
iv. Client, at its own expense, shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect, without interruption during the Term of the Agreement, 

insurance for the Equipment for its full replacement value against all types of loss, damage, theft or casualty, including theft, fire, 
flood and earthquake coverage, and Client shall be responsible for any repair or replacement of the Equipment during the Term made 
necessary by Client’s act or omission, or by any misuse or abuse of the Equipment. 

v. Relocation of Equipment within an existing Client Location shall be as mutually agreed. 1.A.ii above notwithstanding, Client agrees to 
cover costs associated with Equipment relocation within a Client Location or due to relocation of Client offices and that such 
Equipment relocation will be managed by ARC.  Relocation and software re-installation shall be assessed at an hourly rate not to 
exceed $195.00 per hour.

B. Supplies and Software. 
i. ARC will provide the Standard Consumables reflected above for the Equipment.
ii. ARC will provide data collection agent (DCA) software for the purposes of monitoring equipment status and consumables.
iii. If applicable, and at the Rates listed above, ARC will provide software for document print tracking by Client project number for 

reimbursement and cost-tracking purposes. 
2. Hours of Availability. On-Site Service support will be available from 8:00 am to 5:00 pm Monday through Friday, based upon the local time of 

each Client Location and excluding any national holidays observed by ARC. Any requests for On-Site Services not included in the foregoing may 
be subject to Client overtime charges at the Rates listed above. 

3. Rates & Taxes. ARC agrees to guarantee Rates shown above for the first year of this Agreement. Thereafter, ARC reserves the right to adjust 
Rates. All prices and charges are exclusive of all taxes, which will be billed to and paid for by Client. 

4. Billing. Billing will be provided by ARC once per month based on meter. Any meter/tracking data difference will be charged/credited to Client’s 
overhead account. If required, third-party invoices will be provided to Client at reimbursable rates. Special billing reports and requirements 
beyond ARC’s standard billing statement, project invoices and data backup are available upon request for an additional fee.

5. Payment. Payment will be due within thirty (30) calendar days of the date of each invoice at the address listed on the invoice. Any outstanding 
payments which become past due will be subject to a monthly finance charge of two percent (2.0%) of the outstanding account balance. All 
returned checks will be assessed a fee of $50.00 per item.

6. Termination. This Agreement may be terminated (“Terminated”) prior to the expiration of the then-current Term as follows:
A. Termination for Performance or Material Breach. This Agreement may be terminated if one party breaches its obligations under this 

Agreement (the “Breaching Party”), and such breach is not cured, or capable of being cured, by the Breaching Party within forty-five (45) 
days of the written notice of breach; 

B. Termination for Convenience. Customer may also terminate this Agreement for convenience. In the event of such termination, Customer 
shall provide ARC a ninety (90) day written advance notice and shall act in good faith to negotiate a settlement with ARC to provide relief 
for the investment made in Customer’s business. Such settlement shall include ARC’s investment made in the Customer’s business which 
shall consist of the pro-rated value of the machines installed, software and any other startup costs that have been depreciated over the 
life of the agreement.

C. Bankruptcy/Insolvency. Either party may terminate this Agreement, if the other party becomes insolvent or admits its inability to pay its 
debts as they become due; becomes subject, voluntarily or involuntarily, to any bankruptcy proceeding, which is not discharged within 
thirty (30) days; or has a receiver, trustee or custodian appointed by order of any court of competent jurisdiction to take charge of any 
material portion of its property or business. 

D. Failure to Pay. Section 6.A above notwithstanding, ARC shall have the right to terminate this Agreement if Client fails to make timely 
payment of any amount due hereunder, and default continues for a period of ten (10) days after written notice of such default to Client. 
Upon Termination, ARC will take immediate possession of the Equipment, Software and Standard Consumables.

7. Equipment Ownership, Existing Suppliers and Lease Assignment.
A. Equipment Ownership. During the term of this Agreement, the Equipment, Software and Standard Consumables shall remain the sole 

property of ARC. Client agrees not to assert any lien, claim or interest in any of the foregoing. ARC, at its sole discretion working in good 
faith with the Client, will ensure printing needs are appropriate per office and will add or remove equipment based upon the Client’s 
changing printing needs. Such removal, upgrade or replacement will not result in a reduction of the Services.

B. Existing Suppliers. If Applicable, Client agrees to transition its existing suppliers of Services within a thirty-day (30) day period from the 
Effective Date, without breaching any agreements between such existing suppliers and Client. 

C. Lease Assignment. If applicable, Client will make best efforts to assign, cancel or otherwise transfer to ARC (a) existing Client-owned 
equipment, and (b) equipment leased or rented from non-ARC service providers, except where prohibited by law or by agreement; 
provided, however, that the terms of any such agreement(s) are satisfactory to ARC, in its sole discretion. At the onset of this Agreement, 
Client authorizes ARC to negotiate on behalf of Client and set the terms for the transition of ownership, and/or the assignment of financial 
responsibility to the existing print-related equipment operated by Client.

Page 5



On-Site Services Agreement    |    Agreement ID:  249-2853-R    |    Data Capture (Rev. 2.5-2021) CONFIDENTIAL     4

8. Representations and Warranties. ARC represents and warrants that the Services will be provided in a workmanlike and professional manner, 
and in a manner consistent with the terms of this Agreement. The express warranty set forth in this Section is a limited warranty and is the 
only warranty made by ARC. No advice or information, whether oral or written, provided by ARC or any ARC-authorized representative shall 
create any additional warranties beyond this limited express warranty stated in this Section.

9. Confidentiality.
A. Both parties acknowledge that in the course of performance hereunder, they may have access to confidential or proprietary information 

of the other party (“Confidential Information”). Both parties agree to use the Confidential Information only as necessary to fulfill their 
respective obligations under this Agreement and agree to hold such Confidential Information in confidence. Each party agrees that it will 
treat all Confidential Information with at least the same degree of care as it accords to its own Confidential Information. 

B. Client agrees that all Confidential Information used, or created, by ARC to provide the Services shall be and remain the property of ARC, 
including without limitation proprietary software, accounting and tracking systems, pricing, forms, reports, and other like material used to 
provide the Services. 

10. Relationship of the Parties. Client and ARC are and at all times shall be and remain independent contractors as to each other. At no time shall 
either party be deemed to be the agent or employee of the other party, and no joint venture, partnership, agency or other similar relationship 
shall be created or implied by virtue of this Agreement. Subject to Sections 11 and 12, each party is free to enter into similar agreements with 
others to develop, acquire, or provide competitive products and services.

11. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. There are no third-party beneficiaries to this Agreement.
12. Subcontractors and Assignment. ARC may subcontract the provision of the Services, or any part thereof, including technical support, to 

subcontractors selected by ARC. Client shall not assign or otherwise transfer any of its rights, or delegate or otherwise transfer any of its 
obligations, under this Agreement, in each case whether voluntarily, involuntarily, by operation of law or otherwise, without ARC’s prior 
written consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. For purposes of the preceding sentence, and without limiting its generality, any 
merger, consolidation or reorganization involving Client (regardless of whether Client is a surviving or disappearing entity) will be deemed to be 
a transfer of rights or obligations under this Agreement for which ARC’s prior written consent is required. No delegation or other transfer will 
relieve Client of any of its obligations under this Agreement. Any purported assignment, delegation or transfer in violation of this provision is 
void. This Agreement is binding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

13. Force Majeure. Neither party is responsible for failure to fulfill any non-monetary obligations due to events or causes beyond its control.
14. Governing Law and Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the internal laws of the State of 

California without giving effect to any choice or conflict of law provision or rule (whether of the State of California or any other jurisdiction) 
that would cause the application of laws of any jurisdiction other than those of the State of California. Any legal claim, suit, action or 
proceeding arising out of this Agreement or the matters contemplated hereunder or the breach thereof, whether sounding in contract, tort or 
otherwise, shall be instituted exclusively in the federal courts of the United States or the courts of the State of California in each case located in 
the City and County of San Francisco, and each party irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of such courts in any such suit, action or 
proceeding and waives any objection based on improper venue or forum non conveniens.

15. Attorneys’ Fees and Costs; Waiver of Jury. The prevailing party in any action to enforce or interpret this Agreement will be entitled to recover 
its attorneys’ fees and costs in connection with such action. To the maximum extent permissible, the parties hereby waive their rights to a trial 
by jury and acknowledge that such waiver is part of the consideration supporting this Agreement, without which, the parties would not have 
entered into this Agreement.

16. Notices. Notices to be given or submitted by either party to other pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and directed to the address in 
the preamble to this Agreement or otherwise provided to the other party in writing and shall be deemed to have been given (a) when 
delivered by hand (with written confirmation of receipt), or (b) when received by the addressee if sent by a nationally recognized overnight 
courier (receipt requested) or by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid.

17. No Waiver. No waiver by any party of any of the provisions hereof shall be effective unless explicitly set forth in writing and signed by the party 
so waiving. Except as otherwise set forth in this Agreement, no failure to exercise, or delay in exercising, any right, remedy, power or privilege 
arising from this Agreement shall operate or be construed as a waiver thereof; nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right, remedy, 
power or privilege hereunder preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, remedy, power or privilege.

18. Complete Agreement. This Agreement, including all exhibits and addenda hereto, constitutes the sole and entire agreement between the 
parties with respect to the subject matter contained herein, and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous understandings, agreements, 
proposals or representations and warranties, written or oral, concerning its subject matter. 

19. Modification. This Agreement may only be amended, modified or supplemented by an agreement in writing signed by each party hereto.
20. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement shall be adjudged by any court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, unenforceable or invalid, 

that provision shall be limited or eliminated to the minimum extent necessary so that this Agreement shall otherwise remain in full force and 
effect and enforceable, but shall not affect any other term or provision of this Agreement or invalidate or render unenforceable such term or 
provision in any other jurisdiction.

21. Construction. The normal rule of construction to the effect that any ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party shall not be 
employed in the interpretation of this Agreement or any amendments or exhibits hereto.

22. Authority. The individuals executing this Agreement on behalf of each party individually represent and warrant that he or she has been 
authorized to do so and has the power to bind the party for whom they are signing.

23. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, which taken together shall form one legal instrument. A signed copy of this 
Agreement delivered by facsimile, e-mail or other means of electronic transmission shall be deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of 
an original copy of this Agreement.

 
 
 
 

Page 6



On-Site Services Agreement    |    Agreement ID:  249-2853-R    |    Data Capture (Rev. 2.5-2021) CONFIDENTIAL     5

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the dates specified below:

"ARC"
ARC Document Solutions, LLC

"CLIENT"
Gilroy Unified School District

By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

Page 7



Sale With Service & Supply Agreement
Agreement ID:  249-2853-R

This Sale With Service & Supply Agreement (together with the attached Order Form and Terms and Conditions, the 
“Agreement”) is between:

Company
ARC Document Solutions, LLC
12657 Alcosta Blvd., Suite 200 
San Ramon, CA 94583
(925) 949-5100
Account Exec Name:  Jeriel Aguilar
Account Exec Email:  Jeriel.aguilar@e-arc.com

Client
Gilroy Unified School District ("Client")
220 Swanson Lane 
Gilroy, CA  95020
Contact Name:  Paul Nadeau
Contact Email:  paul.nadeau@gilroyunified.org
Contact Phone:  (408) 807-1346

Page 8



Sale With Service & Supply Agreement    |    Agreement ID:  249-2853-R    |    Data Capture (Rev. 2.5-2021) CONFIDENTIAL     2

Order Form

Effective Date: 1/10/2022

Term: 12 Months

ARC will provide the services and/or supplies in the sections and at the rates specified below. The Term of this Agreement shall commence on the 
Effective Date. Thereafter, the Term of this Agreement shall be automatically renewed for additional twelve (12) month periods unless otherwise 
terminated by either party, as provided herein.

Equipment (Place)

On-Site Service Rates

NOTE: Large Format Media Rates Include Ink/Toner, Service & up to 20# Bond Rolls (“Standard Consumables”); Installation, Standard Delivery, & 
Training charges are included unless otherwise specified. One free delivery of media and supplies per month. Subsequent orders of included 
supplies will incur a delivery charge.

NOTE: Rates are all-inclusive as defined in the Terms and Conditions below. Rent-to-Own option to pay $519.71 monthly for 12 months. At the end 
of the 12 month term, Gilroy USD will own the OCE PW360 SN: 330808342.

One-Time Charges

Client Location Where Equipment Will Reside

 

Quantity     Equipment  Monthly  Unit 
Base Price

Monthly Total 
Base Price

1 OCE PlotWave 360 SN: 330808342 $175.00 $175.00

        Service Unit of 
Measurement Price

    Large Format Plotting SqFt $0.1250

Quantity     Service  Unit Price Total Price

1 Equipment Purchase Price $6,236.56 $6,236.56

        Address City State Zip Code Country

     220 Swanson Lane Gilroy CA 95020 United States

Page 9



Sale With Service & Supply Agreement    |    Agreement ID:  249-2853-R    |    Data Capture (Rev. 2.5-2021) CONFIDENTIAL     3

 

Terms and Conditions
1. On-Site Services. On-Site Services shall include the following:

A. Equipment. 
i. ARC will service the assigned print equipment, listed above (“Equipment”), operating at designated Client Locations.
ii. ARC will be responsible for parts and labor associated with the installation, management and operation of such Equipment.
iii. Relocation of Equipment within an existing Client Location shall be as mutually agreed. 1.A.ii above notwithstanding, Client agrees to 

cover costs associated with Equipment relocation within a Client Location or due to relocation of Client offices and that such 
Equipment relocation will be managed by ARC. Relocation and software re-installation fees shall be assessed at the hourly rate 
specified above. If client chooses to relocate Equipment without contracting ARC, and damages to the equipment will be client’s 
responsibility.

B. Supplies and Software.
i. ARC will provide the Standard Consumables reflected above for the Equipment.
ii. C. Options
iii. If applicable, ARC will provide data collection agent (“DCA”) software for the purposes of monitoring equipment status and 

consumables.
iv. If applicable, and at the Rates listed above, ARC will provide software for document print tracking by Client project number for 

reimbursement and cost-tracking purposes.
2. Hours of Availability. On-Site Service support will be available from 8:00 am to 5:00 pm Monday through Friday, based upon the local time of 

each Client Location and excluding any national holidays observed by ARC. Any requests for On-Site Services not included in the foregoing may 
be subject to Client overtime charges at the Rates listed above. 

3. Rates & Taxes. ARC agrees to guarantee Rates shown above for the first year of this Agreement. Thereafter, ARC reserves the right to adjust 
Rates. All prices and charges are exclusive of all taxes and transportation charges, which will be billed to and paid for by Client.

4. Payment. Payment will be due within thirty (30) calendar days of the date of each invoice at the address listed on the invoice. Any outstanding 
payments which become past due will be subject to a monthly finance charge of two percent (2.0%) of the outstanding account balance. All 
returned checks will be assessed a fee of $50.00 per item.

5. Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by either party for convenience by providing the other party with a (90) day prior written 
notice.

6. Equipment Ownership, Existing Suppliers and Lease Assignment. Client agrees to transition its existing suppliers of Services within a thirty 
day (30) day period from the Effective Date, without breaching any agreements between such existing suppliers and Client.

7. Representations and Warranties. ARC represents and warrants that the Services will be provided in a workmanlike and professional manner, 
and in a manner consistent with the terms of this Agreement. The express warranty set forth in this Section is a limited warranty and is the 
only warranty made by ARC. No advice or information, whether oral or written, provided by ARC or any ARC-authorized representative shall 
create any additional warranties beyond this limited express warranty stated in this Section. Service provided by this agreement does not 
include repair to damage caused by abuse, accident, fire, water, willful damage, forces of nature, or due to accidental or willful misuse.

8. Non-Solicitation.  During the Term of the Agreement and for an additional 18 months following the expiration or Termination of this 
Agreement, Client will not, without prior written consent of ARC and payment of remuneration acceptable to ARC, directly or indirectly, (i) 
induce or attempt to induce any employee or independent contractor of ARC to leave their employment or contractual relationship with ARC, 
or in any way interfere with the relationship between ARC and any employee or independent contractor, (ii) hire any person who is, or at the 
time of expiration or Termination of this Agreement was, an employee of ARC, or (iii) induce or attempt to induce any customer, supplier or 
other business relation of ARC to cease doing business with ARC, or in any way interfere with the relationship between any such customer, 
supplier or business relation and ARC (including, without limitation, making any disparaging statements or communications about ARC).

9. Confidentiality.
A. Both parties acknowledge that in the course of performance hereunder, they may have access to confidential or proprietary information 

of the other party (“Confidential Information”). Both parties agree to use the Confidential Information only as necessary to fulfill their 
respective obligations under this Agreement and agree to hold such Confidential Information in confidence. Each party agrees that it will 
treat all Confidential Information with at least the same degree of care as it accords to its own Confidential Information.

B. Client agrees that all Confidential Information used, or created, by ARC to provide the Services shall be and remain the property of ARC, 
including without limitation proprietary software, accounting and tracking systems, pricing, forms, reports, and other like material used to 
provide the Services.

10. Relationship of the Parties. Client and ARC are and at all times shall be and remain independent contractors as to each other.
11. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. There are no third-party beneficiaries to this Agreement.
12. Subcontractors and Assignment. ARC may subcontract the provision of the Services, or any part thereof, including technical support, to 

subcontractors selected by ARC. Client shall not assign or transfer otherwise any of its rights, or delegate or otherwise transfer any of its 
obligations, under this Agreement.

13. Force Majeure. Neither party is responsible for failure to fulfill any non-monetary obligations due to events or causes beyond its control.
14. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the internal laws of the State of California without 

giving effect to any choice or conflict of law provision or rule.

Page 10



Sale With Service & Supply Agreement    |    Agreement ID:  249-2853-R    |    Data Capture (Rev. 2.5-2021) CONFIDENTIAL     4

15. Attorneys’ Fees and Costs; Waiver of Jury. The prevailing party in any action to enforce or interpret this Agreement will be entitled to recover 
its attorneys’ fees and costs in connection with such action. To the maximum extent permissible, the parties hereby waive their rights to a trial 
by jury and acknowledge that such waiver is part of the consideration supporting this Agreement, without which, the parties would not have 
entered into this Agreement.

16. Notices. Notices to be given or submitted by either party to other pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and directed to the address in 
the preamble to this Agreement or otherwise provided to the other party in writing and shall be deemed to have been given (a) when 
delivered by hand (with written confirmation of receipt), or (b) when received by the addressee if sent by a nationally recognized overnight 
courier (receipt requested) or by certified or registered mail, return receipt   requested, postage prepaid.

17. Complete Agreement. This Agreement, including all exhibits and addenda hereto, constitutes the sole and entire agreement between the 
parties with respect to the subject matter contained herein, and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous understandings, agreements, 
proposals or representations and warranties, written or oral, concerning its subject matter.

18. Modification. This Agreement may only be amended, modified or supplemented by an agreement in writing signed by each party hereto.
19. Authority. The individuals executing this Agreement on behalf of each party individually represent and warrant that he or she has been 

authorized to do so and has the power to bind the party for whom they are signing.
20. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, which taken together shall form one legal instrument. A signed copy of this 

Agreement delivered by facsimile, e-mail or other means of electronic transmission shall be deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of 
an original copy of this Agreement.

 
 
 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the dates specified below:

"ARC"
ARC Document Solutions, LLC

"CLIENT"
Gilroy Unified School District

By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

Page 11



Please write checks to
Specified Play Equipment Co (SPECPlay)
121 #1 Industrial Road
Belmont, CA 94002

Specified Play Equipment Co.
121 #1 Industrial Road
Belmont, CA  94002
800.475.1071
www.specplay.com

ADDRESS SHIP TO
Marissa Van Patten
Gilroy Unified School District
7810 Arroyo Circle,
Gilroy, CA  95020

Marissa Van Patten
Gilroy Unified School District
7810 Arroyo Circle,
Gilroy, CA  95020

Estimate 2290

DATE 12/10/2021 

EXPIRATION DATE 01/07/2022

TRACKING NO. CSLB# 1050307 DIR# 1000064237
El Roble ES Speed limiter - -

ACTIVITY QTY RATE AMOUNT

PARTS AND LABOR TO ADD A SPEED 
LIMITER TO THE SPINETIC SPINNER
BCI Burke Equipment
#049-1760 - Speed Limiter
#036-1513 - Hardware Package

1 1,617.00 1,617.00T

Installation Service
Complete disassembly of Spinetic with 
addition of Speed limiter, and re-assembly 
per Burke specifications

1 900.00 900.00

Freight
Freight and packaging

1 108.00 108.00

PLEASE NOTE:
-Lead time estimated at 4-6 weeks
-Permits, Bonding, and engineered drawings 
not included.
-Surfacing not included.
-Due to volatility in steel and shipping costs, 
quote is valid for 30 days.

By signing below you acknowledge and agree to our Contract. 
The values shown above represent a specific scope; no other 
work should be assumed unless specifically noted in the text of 
the above line items. Unless otherwise specified we Exclude 
Responsibility for: offloading equipment, removal of packaging, 
project security, landscape & hardscape repair, delays due to 

SUBTOTAL 2,625.00
TAX 147.55

Page 12

namartinez
Typewritten Text
2b



Please write checks to
Specified Play Equipment Co (SPECPlay)
121 #1 Industrial Road
Belmont, CA 94002

conflicts, removal of spoils, locating underground; utilities, 
pipes, obstructions, conditions unforeseen and/or not disclosed 
at time of estimate, permits, engineering, soil samples. We are 
experienced with State & Federal prevailing wage and certified 
payroll requirements from DIR/DOL and will process when 
applicable. Union Agreements, including PLA's, are the 
responsibility of others and not to be included in our contract. 
Conditions: Grades; stable,compacted, & workable, (rough 
grade to be taken + or - one tenth of one inch), adequate 
access to work site provided for workmen, materials, tools, & 
equipment

TOTAL $2,772.55

Accepted By Accepted Date

Page 13



Please write checks to
Specified Play Equipment Co (SPECPlay)
121 #1 Industrial Road
Belmont, CA 94002

Specified Play Equipment Co.
121 #1 Industrial Road
Belmont, CA  94002
800.475.1071
www.specplay.com

ADDRESS SHIP TO
Marissa Van Patten
Gilroy Unified School District
7810 Arroyo Circle,
Gilroy, CA  95020

Marissa Van Patten
Gilroy Unified School District
7810 Arroyo Circle,
Gilroy, CA  95020

Estimate 2290

DATE 12/10/2021 

EXPIRATION DATE 01/07/2022

TRACKING NO. CSLB# 1050307 DIR# 1000064237
El Roble ES Speed limiter - -

ACTIVITY QTY RATE AMOUNT

PARTS AND LABOR TO ADD A SPEED 
LIMITER TO THE SPINETIC SPINNER
BCI Burke Equipment
#049-1760 - Speed Limiter
#036-1513 - Hardware Package

1 1,617.00 1,617.00T

Installation Service
Complete disassembly of Spinetic with 
addition of Speed limiter, and re-assembly 
per Burke specifications

1 900.00 900.00

Freight
Freight and packaging

1 108.00 108.00

PLEASE NOTE:
-Lead time estimated at 4-6 weeks
-Permits, Bonding, and engineered drawings 
not included.
-Surfacing not included.
-Due to volatility in steel and shipping costs, 
quote is valid for 30 days.

By signing below you acknowledge and agree to our Contract. 
The values shown above represent a specific scope; no other 
work should be assumed unless specifically noted in the text of 
the above line items. Unless otherwise specified we Exclude 
Responsibility for: offloading equipment, removal of packaging, 
project security, landscape & hardscape repair, delays due to 

SUBTOTAL 2,625.00
TAX 147.55

Page 14



Please write checks to
Specified Play Equipment Co (SPECPlay)
121 #1 Industrial Road
Belmont, CA 94002

conflicts, removal of spoils, locating underground; utilities, 
pipes, obstructions, conditions unforeseen and/or not disclosed 
at time of estimate, permits, engineering, soil samples. We are 
experienced with State & Federal prevailing wage and certified 
payroll requirements from DIR/DOL and will process when 
applicable. Union Agreements, including PLA's, are the 
responsibility of others and not to be included in our contract. 
Conditions: Grades; stable,compacted, & workable, (rough 
grade to be taken + or - one tenth of one inch), adequate 
access to work site provided for workmen, materials, tools, & 
equipment

TOTAL $2,772.55

Accepted By Accepted Date

Page 15



Page 16

namartinez
Typewritten Text
2c



Page 17



Page 18



Luigi Aprea ES APN Boundary

©2010 County of Santa Clara, all rights reserved
County of Santa Clara, County of Santa Cruz, Bureau of Land
Management, Esri, HERE, Garmin, INCREMENT P, Intermap,
USGS, METI/NASA, EPA, USDA

9/23/2021, 11:04:36 PM
0 0.04 0.080.02 mi

0 0.06 0.120.03 km

1:2,257

EXHIBIT A

Page 19

Marissa.VanPatten
Rectangle

Marissa.VanPatten
Line

Marissa.VanPatten
Line

Marissa.VanPatten
Line

Marissa.VanPatten
Callout
Target location for ornamental campus boundary fence

Marissa.VanPatten
Callout
Possible location for optional chain link fence with gate to limit open play to visible area

Marissa.VanPatten
Callout
Potential location for access path to new playground.  (location of current recess access gate)

Marissa.VanPatten
Callout
GUSD parcel line

Marissa.VanPatten
Callout
Existing perimeter fence line



January 7, 2022 Proposal No.: HOL-22-01-001 

Mr. Paul Nadeau  
Gilroy Unified School District 
7810 Arroyo Circ 
Gilroy, CA 95020 

PROJECT: LUIGI APREA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL PLAYGROUND IMPROVEMENTS 
9225 CALLE DEL REY 
GILROY, CALIFORNIA 

SUBJECT: Proposal for Geotechnical Construction Inspection and Testing Services 

Dear Mr. Nadeau: 

Earth Systems Pacific (Earth Systems) is submitting herein our geotechnical construction 
inspection and testing services proposal for the subject project.  Detailed plans were not available 
at the time of this proposal.  However, we understand that the project will consist of installation 
of new playground equipment and access path, and ornamental fence that will be under 
California Division of State Architect (DSA) purview.  Additional planned improvements not under 
DSA purview will be a section of chain-link fence and manual rolling gate.  We also understand 
that geotechnical engineering consultations/recommendations are not anticipated for the 
project. 

We have assumed this project will be constructed by the basic procedures of those typically used 
on CBC Title 24 designed projects.  A construction schedule was not available during the 
preparation of this estimate.  Based on our review of the preliminary plans provided to us and 
our recent experience with projects of a similar nature, our anticipated scope of work will include: 

• Evaluate the conformance of required concrete mix design with project
specifications,

• Perform periodic batch plant inspection and field concrete sampling and
testing

• Perform conformance testing of concrete samples
• Provide grading observation
• Perform in-place compaction testing to evaluate compliance with project

specifications
• Perform laboratory testing of native and import soils
• Observe drilling of fence post holes
• Project management and supervision

Page 20

namartinez
Typewritten Text
2d



• Upload required reports and documents to DSA Certification Box, 
• Report weekly certified payroll to the State of California as required by law, and 
• Prepare Interim and Final Verified Reports for each DSA 152 Card issued for the 

project. 
 

ESTIMATED FEES 

Earth Systems will provide our geotechnical construction testing and inspection services on a 
time and material basis per our fee schedule in effect at the time of services. 
 
Our estimated fee to provide the services is $12,435.80.  Our “Scope of Anticipated Services and 
Cost Estimate” worksheet is attached for your information and review. 
 
Earth Systems anticipates that our coverage will be on a continuous/periodic basis as required 
by code and job activities, and by DSA-103.  The project IOR will be responsible for coordinating 
our services.  Any standby time of calls for services not ready will be invoiced on a time and 
materials basis. 
 

SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 

The fees and conditions of this proposal will remain in effect for a period of 180 days.  As the 
presence of our personnel at the site will depend upon the contractor's schedule and the 
progress of the work, the fees presented above are to be considered as estimates only, and 
should not be construed as guaranteed maximum fees.  The invoices will reflect the actual 
charged based on our fee schedule for the amount of time spent and service performed, and may 
be greater or less than the estimated amounts. 
 
Fees for overtime, weekend, and holiday work will be adjusted, and minimum work hours will be 
applied, in accordance with the State requirements.  Night work (before 7:00 AM and after 5:00 
PM) and overtime work will be invoiced at a rate of 1.5 times the appropriate rate.  Field time 
will be subject to a two-hour minimum charge.  Hourly fees for field work and travel time will be 
charged on a portal-to-portal basis from our office in Hollister. 
 
It is our understanding that the project is subject to California Prevailing Wage Law.  For your 
convenience in setting up the project, we have included our DIR registration numbers below. 
 

Page 21



DIR Public Works Registration Numbers 

Legal Name 

Registration 
Number 

License 
Type* 

Registration 
Date 

Expiration 
Date 

Earth Systems Pacific 1000003643 N100143 7/01/2021 6/30/2022 
*Professional Corporation License Number assigned by DIR March 27, 2015

Please note that effective August 1, 2016, we are required to submit certified payrolls for all 
Prevailing Wage projects via eCPR.  In order to upload certified payrolls to the State’s website, 
the project’s DIR number is necessary.  Please complete the attached SB 854 DIR and eCPR 
Compliance Information Request form and return to our office at your earliest convenience. 

If you find the proposed scope of work and fees satisfactory, it is our understanding that the 
district will issue a professional services agreement for our execution and a purchase order as an 
authorization to proceed. 

We thank you for your consideration of Earth Systems for this project.  Please feel free to contact 
the office at your convenience if you have any questions or require additional information. 

Sincerely, 

Earth Systems Pacific 

Brett Faust, CEG 2386 
Vice president 

Attachments: Anticipated Scope of Services & Cost Estimate Worksheet 
Prevailing Wage & Accounts Payable Information Request 
January 1, 2022 Fee Schedule 

Doc. No.: 2201-005.PRP/jc 

Page 22



Project: Luigi Aprea Playground Improvements Date: 1/7/2022
Proposal No.: HOL-22-01-001
Client: Gilroy Unified School District

Technician (PW) $135.00 minimum 2 hour billing increments
Special Inspector (Non-PW) $110.00 minimum 2 hour billing increments

Technicain (Non-PW) $100.00 minimum 2 hour billing increments
Mileage (per mile) $0.80

Number of Trips Hours or Units Total Rate unit Fee

Playground Improvements

Batch Plant Inspection (local bay area) 2 2 4 $110.00 hr. $440.00

ACI Concrete Technician Sampling 2 8 16 $135.00 hr. $2,160.00

Sample Pickups 2 2 4 $100.00 hr. $400.00

Compaction Testing 4 4 16 $135.00 hr. $2,160.00

Nuclear Density Equipment 4 4 16 $15.00 hr. $240.00

Fence post hole observation 2 4 16 $135.00 hr. $2,160.00

Mileage 16 36 576 $0.80 mi. $460.80

Subtotal $8,020.80

Laboratory Testing Sets Samples Rate Unit Fee

Concrete Cylinder Testing 2 10 $42.00 ea. $420.00

Proctor Testing 6" Mold 1 $315.00 ea. $315.00

Proctor Testing 4" Mold 2 $270.00 ea. $540.00

Budget Projection 

Geotechnical Construction Inspection and Testing Budget 

Page 23



Project: Luigi Aprea Playground Improvements Date: 1/7/2022
Proposal No.: HOL-22-01-001
Client: Gilroy Unified School District

Technician (PW) $135.00 minimum 2 hour billing increments
Special Inspector (Non-PW) $110.00 minimum 2 hour billing increments

Technicain (Non-PW) $100.00 minimum 2 hour billing increments
Mileage (per mile) $0.80

Budget Projection 

Geotechnical Construction Inspection and Testing Budget 
Subtotal $1,275.00

Reports and Project Management

Project Management and Supervision (in hours) 4 $195.00 hr. $780.00

Progress Inspection Reports and upload to the BOX 4 $85.00 ea. $340.00

California Prevailing Wage Payroll Reporting 4 $85.00 ea. $340.00

Engineering Review 6 $230.00 hr. $1,380.00

Interim and Final Report of Geotechnical Inspections and Testing 1 $300.00 ea. $300.00

$3,140.00

Estimate Total: $12,435.80

Subtotal

Page 24



Prevailing Wage and Accounts Payable Information Request 
Thank you for this opportunity to be of service on your public works project. Please complete and return this 
form to allow us to comply with California’s prevailing wage requirements, and to prepare Earth Systems’ 
invoices in accordance with your organization’s billing requirements in a timely manner. Thank you! 

Legal Name of Earth Systems 
PWC Registration No. 

Earth Systems Pacific 
1000003643 

Earth Systems Project No. 

PUBLIC WORKS PROJECT REGISTRATION INFORMATION: 
CLIENT’S PROJECT NAME Luigi Aprea ES Playground Improvements

HOL-22-01-001
DIR PROJECT ID (PWC-100) 

APPLICABLE BID 
ADVERTISEMENT DATE 

CLIENT’S REPRESENTATIVE FOR 
DIR PROJECT ID INFORMATION 

Name: 
E-mail:
Phone No.:

LABOR COMPLIANCE 
PROGRAM (LCP) APPLICABLE 
TO THIS PROJECT? 

Yes    or     No 
If yes, please confirm if Earth Systems will be subject to the LCP 
and provide a copy of the LCP manual to Earth Systems before 
start of project. 

CLIENT’S BILLING REQUIREMENTS: 
PURCHASE ORDER NO. 
(if applicable) 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
REQUIRED ON INVOICES 

SPECIFY ANY ADDITIONAL 
FORMS OR BILLING FORMATS 
REQUIRED TO BE SUBMITTED 
WITH INVOICES 
(please attach example) 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CONTACT 
INFORMATION 

Name: 
E-mail:
Phone No.:

INVOICE DELIVERY METHOD E-mail:

Mailing Address: 

Date January 7, 2022 

Doc. No.: 2201-005.PRP/jc 

Page 25



 
 

FEE SCHEDULE – DSA/OSHPD 

(Effective January 1, 2022) 

This schedule presents rates for professional and technical services in the fields of geotechnical engineering, engineering 
geology, environmental consulting, construction observation and testing, and special inspection. Listed are charges for 
services most frequently performed by Earth Systems. Additional services not listed are available and can be discussed 
upon request; fixed-fee quotes for some services can also be provided upon request. To discuss a scope of work and fees 
for a specific project, please contact our office. 

PERSONNEL Hourly Rate 
Principal Professional ............................................................................................................................................. $230.00 
Associate Professional ........................................................................................................................................... $205.00 
Senior Professional ................................................................................................................................................ $195.00 
Project Professional ............................................................................................................................................... $165.00 
Staff Professional ................................................................................................................................................... $145.00 
DSA Masonry, Shotcrete and NDT ......................................................................................................................... $145.00 
CWI & Special Inspector, Prevailing Wage* ........................................................................................................... $140.00 
Technician, Prevailing Wage* ................................................................................................................................ $135.00 
Special Services/Caltrans Technician, Prevailing Wage* ....................................................................................... $135.00 
Special Services Technician .................................................................................................................................... $120.00 
CWI Inspector ........................................................................................................................................................ $120.00 
Special Inspector .................................................................................................................................................... $110.00 
Technical Assistant................................................................................................................................................. $100.00 
Technician .............................................................................................................................................................. $100.00 
Clerical/Administrative ............................................................................................................................................ $85.00 

* Technician/Inspector Classifications as defined by the State of California Department of Industrial Relations. 

BASIS OF CHARGES 
1. The prevailing wage (PW) rates presented herein are based on current rates established by the Department of 

Industrial Relations (DIR). If, during the course of the project, prevailing wage rates are increased by DIR, rates are 
subject to adjustment.  

2. Field services for regular work days are subject to a 4-hour minimum charge, and billed in 4-hour increments.   
3. Work performed on Saturdays, night work, and for premium hours (before 7 a.m., after 5 p.m. or more than 8 hours 

in one day) for personnel are at time and one-half; Sundays and holidays are at double time. Also, please note 
requirements concerning overtime, shift work, travel time, holidays, and other factors can vary for different 
classifications of work under prevailing wage regulations. 

4. A 2-hour cancellation charge applies if scheduled inspection or testing is cancelled after 4 p.m. the day prior to the 
scheduled work.  

5. Mileage is invoiced at a rate of $0.80/mile (portal-to-portal). 
6. Nuclear density gauge charge: $15.00/hour. 
7. Weekly special inspection report charge: $120.00. 
8. Subcontracted services, materials, rental equipment, out of town travel, and expenses are charged at cost plus 20 

percent. Fixed per diem rates for specific projects can be provided upon request. 
9. Report copies: $30.00 each (minimum).  Posting of electronic documents to project websites will be charged at 

clerical/administrative services rate. 
10. Projects where State regulations require electronic submittal of Certified Payroll to DIR for prevailing wage will be 

assessed a fee of $85.00/week. Additional time required to address specific requests related to DIR/Labor 
Compliance will be charged at the clerical/administrative services rates. 

11. Invoices are payable upon presentation. Invoices thirty days past due are subject to a service charge of one and one-
half percent per month.  Payments using a credit card will be assigned a 3% surcharge. 

12. Rates are effective through June 30, 2022. 

  

Page 26



 
 

FEE SCHEDULE – DSA/OSHPD – MATERIALS TESTING 

(Effective January 1, 2022) 

BASIS OF CHARGES 
Rates for field work such as materials sampling, construction inspection, and field evaluation will be in accordance with the 
Personnel Rates listed in the basic Fee Schedule.  The below listed rates apply to standard ASTM test methods.  An 
additional hourly charge ($100.00/hr.) will be applied for cutting, capping, or other preparation of non-standard samples 
and, where noted, for steel samples.  
 
SOILS 
All prices are based on California and Modified California sample sizes (2” – 2.5” diameter) unless noted otherwise.  
Preparation of 3” diameter samples add $20.00.  Testing of contaminated soil will be per quote.  Samples will be returned 
to sender for proper disposal. 

 
Atterberg Limits: Liquid Limit or Plastic Limit................................................................................................................ $120.00 
Atterberg Limits: Plasticity Index .................................................................................................................................. $220.00 
California Bearing Ratio, 3 points; incl. ref maximum density ...................................................................................... $580.00 
California Bearing Ratio, 9 points; incl. ref maximum density ...................................................................................... $950.00 
Consolidation, one dimensional .................................................................................................................................... $210.00 
Consolidation, timed, per point .................................................................................................................................... $105.00 
Basic Corrosivity w/out Rpt (pH, Sulfate, Chl., Resistivity) ........................................................................................ Per Quote 
Direct Shear, 3 points minimum  ................................................................................................................................... $300.00 
Expansion Index Test ..................................................................................................................................................... $200.00 
Maximum Density and Optimum Moisture: 4” Mold ................................................................................................... $260.00 
Maximum Density and Optimum Moisture: 6” Mold ................................................................................................... $305.00 
Maximum Density and Optimum Moisture: California Impact ..................................................................................... $300.00 
Moisture and Unit Weight Determination, from Ring Samples ...................................................................................... $50.00 
Moisture Only .................................................................................................................................................................. $45.00 
Permeability Tests, constant head or falling head .................................................................................................... Per Quote 
R-Value .......................................................................................................................................................................... $305.00 
R-Value, CA State Hwy/set of 3, Cement, Lime, Other addts ........................................................................................ $380.00 
Hydro Collapse Potential ............................................................................................................................................... $175.00 
Hydrometer Analysis, assumed specific gravity, with 200 wash ................................................................................... $245.00 
Sieve/Hydrometer Anlys, assumed specific grvty, w/200 wash .................................................................................... $250.00 
Sieve Analysis, Aggregate Base/Subbase ...................................................................................................................... $160.00 
Sieve Analysis 200 wash only ........................................................................................................................................ $100.00 
Sieve Analysis with wash ............................................................................................................................................... $130.00 
Sieve Analysis, Oversize Material .................................................................................................................................. $220.00 
Specific Gravity .............................................................................................................................................................. $150.00 
Swell Test, undisturbed ................................................................................................................................................. $210.00 
Swell Test, remolded ..................................................................................................................................................... $235.00 
Unconfined Compressive Strength, untreated .............................................................................................................. $110.00 
Unconfined Compressive Strength, lime or cement treated mtrl ................................................................................. $495.00 

THERMAL RESISTIVITY TESTS 
Concrete, 1 pt w/moisture content (req spcl collection proc) .................................................................................. Per Quote 
Field Testing using Thermal Resistivity Meter ........................................................................................................... Per Quote 
Soil, per moisture point, per sample ......................................................................................................................... Per Quote 
Soil, 3 moisture points with dry-out curve, per sample ............................................................................................ Per Quote 

CONCRETE AGGREGATE 
Abrasion, L.A. Rattler, 100 and 500 revolutions ............................................................................................................ $305.00 
Absorption, Coarse Aggregate ........................................................................................................................................ $90.00 
Absorption, Fine Aggregate ........................................................................................................................................... $130.00 
Clay Lumps and Friable Particles in Aggregate .............................................................................................................. $130.00 
Cleanness Value of Coarse Aggregate ........................................................................................................................... $180.00 
Crushed Particles, each size .......................................................................................................................................... $130.00 

  Page 27



 
FEE SCHEDULE – DSA/OSHPD – MATERIALS TESTING 

(Effective January 1, 2022) 

CONCRETE AGGREGATE (Cont.) 
Durability Index, Coarse or Fine Aggregate ................................................................................................................... $180.00 
Flat and Elongated Particles in Aggregate ..................................................................................................................... $130.00 
Organic Impurities in Fine Aggregate ............................................................................................................................ $100.00 
Potential Reactivity of Aggr by Chemical Method, ea size ........................................................................................ Per Quote 
Sand Equivalent ............................................................................................................................................................. $175.00 
Sieve Analysis, washed .................................................................................................................................................. $195.00 
Soundness, Sodium Sulfate, 5 cycles ............................................................................................................................. $355.00 
Specific Gravity, Coarse Aggregate ................................................................................................................................ $120.00 
Specific Gravity, Fine Aggregate .................................................................................................................................... $150.00 
Uncompacted Void Cntnt of Fine Agg Angularity, w/fine Agg SG ................................................................................. $240.00 
Unit Weight of Aggregate .............................................................................................................................................. $100.00 
 
CONCRETE CYLINDERS, BEAMS AND CORES 
Compression Test of Cast Cylinders per cylinder ............................................................................................................ $42.00* 
Compression Test of Cored Samples, cored at laboratory ............................................................................................ $120.00 
Compression Test of cores delivered by others .............................................................................................................. $80.00 
Compression Test of Lightweight Concrete .................................................................................................................... $50.00* 
Density of Concrete Cylinders ......................................................................................................................................... $85.00 
Density of Hardened Concrete ...................................................................................................................................... $100.00 
Flexural Strength, Simple Beam with Third Point Loading ............................................................................................ $120.00 
Grading of Shotcrete Cores ........................................................................................................................................... $195.00 
Sample Storage, monthly per sample ............................................................................................................................. $50.00 
Shrinkage, set of 3 ......................................................................................................................................................... $420.00 
Unit Weight of Lightweight Concrete .............................................................................................................................. $75.00 
Enviro. Recycling Fee, per cylinder, core or beam ............................................................................................................ $2.00 
Enviro. Recycling Fee, per flex beam ................................................................................................................................. $3.00 
Enviro. Recycle Fee/Form Stripping, per shotcrete panel/beam .................................................................................... $70.00 

MASONRY 
Absorption of Block, set of 3 ......................................................................................................................................... $130.00 
Absorption/Specific Gravity/Moisture Content of Block, set of 3 ................................................................................. $315.00 
Compression Test, 2” x 4” Mortar Cylinders ................................................................................................................... $45.00* 
Compression Test, 3” x 3” x 6” Grout Samples ............................................................................................................... $65.00* 
Compression Test on Block, set of 3.............................................................................................................................. $170.00 
Compression Test on Grouted Prisms, includes cutting ................................................................................................ $160.00* 
Compression Test on Masonry Cores .............................................................................................................................. $70.00 
Coring of Grouted Masonry by Subcontractor ..........................................................................................................cost + 20% 
Masonry Shrinkage, set of 3 .......................................................................................................................................... $255.00 
Moisture Content of Block as received, set of 3 ............................................................................................................. $90.00 
Shear Test on Masonry Cores, 2 faces .......................................................................................................................... $115.00 
Specific Gravity and Unit Weight of Block, set of 3 ....................................................................................................... $105.00 
Enviro. Recycling Fee, per masonry prism ......................................................................................................................... $3.00 
Enviro. Recycling Fee, per mortar or grout sample ........................................................................................................... $2.00 
 
* Includes formal report of test results following 28-Day tests. 

FIREPROOFING 
Fireproof Bond Test ................................................................................................................................................... Per Quote 
Fireproofing Density Test (1) ........................................................................................................................................... $85.00 

ASPHALT CONCRETE 
Bulk Specific Gravity of Compacted Specimens and Core Samples ................................................................................. $85.00 
Compaction of Lab Samples, CA Kneading Compactor, set of 3.................................................................................... $245.00 
Compaction of Lab Samples, CA Kneading Compactor, set of 5.................................................................................... $400.00 

Page 28



 
FEE SCHEDULE – DSA/OSHPD – MATERIALS TESTING 

(Effective January 1, 2022) 

ASPHALT CONCRETE (Cont.) 
Compaction of Lab Spls, Mrshl Mthd set of 3 –(50 blows/side) .................................................................................... $250.00 
Compaction of Lab Spls, Mrshl Mthd set of 3 –(75 blows/side) .................................................................................... $265.00 
Extraction of Oil from A.C. Mixtures .............................................................................................................................. $280.00 
Extraction of Oil from Rubberized Mixtures .................................................................................................................. $370.00 
Gyratory Compactor, per set of field mixed asphalt ..................................................................................................... $500.00 
Hamburg Wheel Tracker Test, per set of field mixed asphalt ....................................................................................... $895.00 
Ignition Oven Binder Cntnt, after initial corr value is det .............................................................................................. $280.00 
Ignition Oven Binder Cntnt Corr Value /mix design, ave of 3 ........................................................................................ $805.00 
Ignition Oven Gradation Correction Value, per mix design ....................................................................................... Per Quote 
Moisture Content ............................................................................................................................................................ $55.00 
Sieve Analysis of Extracted Aggregate ........................................................................................................................... $290.00 
Sieve Analysis of Ignition Oven Residue ........................................................................................................................ $175.00 
Specific Gravity, Theoretical Maximum, Rice Method .................................................................................................. $175.00 
Stability and Flow, Marshall Apparatus, set of 3 ........................................................................................................... $245.00 
Stabilometer, Hveem S-Value, set of 3 .......................................................................................................................... $350.00 
Enviro. Recycling Fee, per sample ..................................................................................................................................... $2.00 
Enviro. Recycling Fee for Extracted Oils .......................................................................................................................... $50.00 

REINFORCING AND STRUCTURAL STEEL 
Bend Test of Welded Specimen, sample preparation not incl ........................................................................................ $85.00 
Pipe Flattening Test, sample preparation not included .................................................................................................. $80.00 
Reinforcing Steel Coupler Tensile and Slip Tests ........................................................................................................... $255.00 
Structural Steel Bend Test, sample preparation not included ........................................................................................ $85.00 
Structural Steel Machining/Sample Preparation .......................................................................................................cost + 20% 
Structural Steel Tensile Test, sample prep not included ................................................................................................. $85.00 
Tensile and Bend Tests of Reinforcing Bar, #2 through #9 ............................................................................................ $155.00 
Tensile and Bend Tests of Reinforcing Bar, #10 through #18 .................................................................................... Per Quote 
Enviro. Recycling Fee, per sample ..................................................................................................................................... $2.00 

BOLT TESTS 
Bolt Tests, chemical or mechanical ...........................................................................................................................cost + 20% 

WELDER QUALIFICATION 
AWS D1.1: 3/8” Plate, per position ........................................................................................................................... Per Quote 
AWS D1.1: 1” Plate, per position ............................................................................................................................... Per Quote 
AWS D1.3: Sheet Steel ............................................................................................................................................... Per Quote 
AWS D1.4: Reinforcing Bar ........................................................................................................................................ Per Quote 
ASME/API Pipe Sections ............................................................................................................................................ Per Quote 

EQUIPMENT/CHARGES (Does Not Include Personnel) 
110-volt Portable Electric Generator .................................................................................................................... $120.00/day 
Anchor Pull Test Equipment ...................................................................................................................................... $50.00/hr. 
Bailer (disposable) w/dedicated rope ...................................................................................................................... $40.00/ea. 
Concrete and Asphalt Concrete Coring Equipment...................................................................................................cost + 20% 
Concrete Slab Moisture Transmission Kit ................................................................................................................. $50.00/ea. 
Conductivity Meter....................................................................................................................................................cost + 20% 
Cut-Off Saw ............................................................................................................................................................. $95.00/day 
Double Ring Infiltrometer (per set) ....................................................................................................................... $170.00/day 
Drum Dolly............................................................................................................................................................... $45.00/day 
Drums  ....................................................................................................................................................................... $95.00/ea. 
Dynamometer, In-line Scale ...................................................................................................................................... Per Quote 
Hammer Drill .............................................................................................................................................................cost + 20% 
Hand Auger/Sampler Equipment ............................................................................................................................ $70.00/day 
Lock n, Load VOC Sample Pres. Sys. ......................................................................................................................... $40.00/ea. 

Page 29



 
 

FEE SCHEDULE – DSA/OSHPD – MATERIALS TESTING 

(Effective January 1, 2022) 

EQUIPMENT/CHARGES (Cont.) (Does Not Include Personnel) 
Magnetic Particle Equipment ..................................................................................................................................... $25.00/hr 
Manometer ........................................................................................................................................................... $120.00/day 
Mini-Troll Groundwater Level Transducer ............................................................................................................ $120.00/day 
Mobile Laboratory ..................................................................................................................................................... Per Quote 
Nuclear Density Equipment ....................................................................................................................................... $15.00/hr. 
Paint Thickness Meter ............................................................................................................................................... Per Quote 
Vehicle with Percolation Tank System .................................................................................................................. $265.00/day 
Personal Protective Equipment Level C..................................................................................................................... Per Quote 
Pile Driving Equipment (for pile load testing) ........................................................................................................... Per Quote  
Pile Load Testing Equipment ..................................................................................................................................... Per Quote  
Pulse Velocity Meter ................................................................................................................................................. Per Quote 
Rebound Hammer (Schmidt Hammer) .................................................................................................................... $65.00/day 
Reinforcing Steel Locating Equipment (DR-Meter) ............................................................................................... $110.00/day 
Relative Humidity Meter ....................................................................................................................................... $100.00/day 
Off Road Vehicle ........................................................................................................................................................ Per Quote  
Safety and Specialty Equipment ................................................................................................................................ Per Quote 
Sampling Consumables ............................................................................................................................................. Per Quote 
Skidmore Bolting Calibration Equipment .............................................................................................................. $215.00/day 
Slope Inclinometer Equipment, per hole .................................................................................................................. Per Quote 
Soil Sampling Containers (metal) ............................................................................................................................. $30.00/ea. 
Soil Sampling Containers (glass) ............................................................................................................................... $12.00/ea. 
Tape Extensometer ................................................................................................................................................... Per Quote 
Tension Equipment ............................................................................................................................................... $160.00/day 
Torque/Tension Equipment .................................................................................................................................... $80.00/day 
Water Level Indicator .............................................................................................................................................. $60.00/day 
Windsor Probe, set of 3 ............................................................................................................................................. Per Quote  
Per Diem .................................................................................................................................................................... Per Quote 
DIR Compliance/eCPR, per week ..................................................................................................................................... $85.00 
DSA Box Posting, ea. ........................................................................................................................................................ $85.00 
DSA Lab Compliance, per week ....................................................................................................................................... $85.00 
Vehicle Mileage Charge ..................................................................................................................................................... $0.80 

  

Page 30



 
 

EXPERT WITNESS SERVICES 

(Effective January 1, 2022) 

 

The following rates apply to deposition testimony, arbitration testimony, hearings and court appearances.  
 
 

HOURLY CHARGES FOR PERSONNEL 
 

Principal Professional ........................................ $400.00 
Associate Professional ....................................... $300.00 
Senior Professional ............................................ $250.00 
Clerical/Admin Services ....................................... $90.00 

 
 

SPECIAL SERVICES 
 

Deposition ................................................. $400.00/hr.2 
Arbitration ................................................... $400.00/hr. 
Court Appearance/Hearings ........... $1,500.00/half day3 
Standby to Appear .................................... $750.00/day4 

 
 
 
BASIS OF CHARGES 
 
1. Hourly rates are charged during investigation, analysis, consultation, and preparation services. 
 
2. Estimated deposition fee payable in advance by party requesting deposition.  The difference between advance 

payment and final fee to be billed or refunded in accordance with the fee and billing information in this schedule.  
Fee for reviewing deposition transcript will be billed at hourly rates to the party requesting the review. 

 
3. Minimum half day charge will apply to court appearances and hearings.  Time extending through the noon hour 

will be subject to the full day charge of $3,000.00. 
 
4. Days, or portions thereof, reserved for appearances at hearings, court, or arbitrations, during which we are not 

required to be away from our offices will be subject to a standby charge of $750.00.  Standby at other locations 
will be charged at the general hourly rates. 

 

Page 31



Gilroy Unified School District 
January 7, 2022 
It is our pleasure to provide this proposal summarizing the 
Quality BiddersSM product and services Colbi Technologies would be 
providing to Gilroy Unified School District for management of their 
contractor prequalification process. This proposal is valid for 90-
days. 
 

Prequalification 
Review Services 

$115 per application 
marked ready for 

approval 
 

As an optional service, Colbi Technologies will do all the work. We 
will review all submitted documents and financial statements, and 
conduct reference checks for two recently completed projects using 
a standard questionnaire. The District will be notified when each 
application is ready for final determination based on the score. 
The District will receive monthly invoices for work performed. 
 

 We appreciate this opportunity to be of service to the Gilroy 
Unified School District.  
 
 Date:    January 7, 2022  
 
 Signed:      
  Lettie Boggs 
  CEO, Colbi Technologies 

  
  

 
 

Page 32

http://www.colbitech.com/
namartinez
Typewritten Text
2e



 
January 10, 2022 
 
Paul Nadeau 
Director of Facilities, Planning and Management 
220 Swanston Ln.  
Gilroy, CA 95020 
 
Subject:   Proposal - School Site Solutions, Inc. General Services/CEQA Exemptions  
  
Dear Paul: 
 
Per your request, School Site Solutions, Inc. (SSS) is pleased to provide the Gilroy Unified School District, 
(GUSD) a proposal for General Services including, but not limited to General Facility Assistance, including 
assistance with state facility approvals, public contracting code requirements related to school 
construction, advising the district on the state facility program, and the assistance with various facility 
management issues including the preparation of categorical exemptions regarding the California 
Environmental Qualities Act. 
 
SSS was founded in 2003 as a school facilities run consulting firm located in Sacramento, California.  SSS 
specializes in program and project management, school site selection, acquisition, State approvals and 
advocacy, Department of Toxic Substances Control oversight, CEQA compliance services and School 
Facility Program eligibility and funding services for K-12 school districts all over the State. School Site 
Solutions also offers school facility construction programming, project and construction management 
services.  In total, we have served over 225 school district clients in this capacity.  Mr. C. John 
Dominguez will serve as your main points of contact.  
 
Please do not hesitate to contact me at office, 916.930.0736 or on my cell phone at 916.257.2534 
should you have any questions or require clarification on any aspect of this proposal. We thank you very 
much for the opportunity to submit a proposal and be considered for your project planning needs. 
 
Best regards, 
 
 
C. John Dominguez 
President 
  

Page 33

namartinez
Typewritten Text
2f

namartinez
Typewritten Text



GILROY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT (DISTRICT) 
SCHOOL SITE SOLUTIONS PROPOSAL 

GENERAL SERVICES 
Scope of Work 
January 2022 

 
GENERAL FACILITY ASSISTANCE  
 
Upon receipt of a written authorization to proceed, SSS would be able to provide the following General 
Facility Assistance services. 
 
• Assistance in project tracking and document control for environmental compliance on facility 

projects. 
• Assist in the procurement DISTRICT consultants, architects, and contractors as necessary. 
• Assist the DISTRICT with proposed school and administrative site planning and permitting 

requirements as directed including CEQA. 
• Attend and support various facility related meetings at the direction of the district. 
• Provide the District with advice and updates regarding the State of California Facilities Program.  
• Assistance with California Department of Education site and plan approval requirements and 

submittals. 
 
GENERAL FACILITY ASSISTANCE COST ESTIMATE 
 
In consideration of the services provided, the District will pay to SCHOOL SITE SOLUTIONS, Inc. fees of $145.00 
per hour, and on a time and material basis plus actual out of pocket expenses (such as mileage/travel, office 
expenses, etc.), for an estimated cost not to exceed $7,500.  The District will be billed monthly for fees and 
expenses. The DISTRICT will be responsible for contracting with identified consultants, providing project 
information in a timely manner, verifying all data prepared by SCHOOL SITE SOLUTIONS, Inc. and for consulting 
with legal counsel related to the preparation of document forms and reports. 

 
Changes to the State facilities program and additional requirements by the regulatory agencies or duties 
requested outside the scope of this contract by the school district may impact the provisions of this proposal. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 34



 
 
 
TERMS OF CONTRACT AND RENEWAL 

This contract is valid for a grand total not to exceed amount of $7,500 on a time and material bases 
eligible for renewal per district request. Renewal contract amounts may reflect changes in the cost of 
living and increases to fee schedules.  
 
Should the DISTRICT wish to obtain SSS Services for projects outside this scope, an amendment or 
change order may be requested.  
 
The DISTRICT will be responsible for providing project information in a timely manner, verifying all data 
prepared by SSS and shall be responsible for consulting with legal counsel related to the preparation of 
document forms and reports. 
 
Changes to the State facilities program and additional requirements by the regulatory agencies and 
duties requested outside the scope of the contract may impact the provisions of this proposal. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35



 
 
 
 
 
 
FIRM CONTACT INFORMATION          

FIRM NAME & LOCATION School Site Solutions, Inc. 
2015 H Street 
Sacramento, CA 95811 
 

PHONE / FAX 916.930.0736 Phone 
916.930.0788 Fax 
 

PRINCIPAL C. John Dominguez, President 
916.257.2534 Cell 
john@schoolsitesolutions.com 
 

STAFF Kim Dessert, Associate Senior Project Manager 
kim@schoolsitesolutions.com 
 
Leigh Coop, Associate Project Manager 
916.695.2331 Cell 
leighforschools@gmail.com 
 
Amanda Durgen, Environmental Planner 
amanda@schoolsitesolutions.com 
 
Mike Cannon, Associate Project Manager 
mike@schoolsitesolutions.com 
 
Dona Riolo, Accounts Payable/Receivable 
Dona@schoolsitesolutions.com 
 
 

Page 36

mailto:john@schoolsitesolutions.com
mailto:kim@schoolsitesolutions.com
mailto:leighforschools@gmail.com
mailto:amanda@schoolsitesolutions.com
mailto:mike@schoolsitesolutions.com
mailto:Dona@schoolsitesolutions.com


FIRM PROFILE             
 
School Site Solutions, Inc. (SSS) is an “S” Corporation co-founded in June 2003 by Mr. C. John 
Dominguez, President and Mr. James F. Bush. SSS is a small consulting firm consisting of five staff 
members and one accounts manager.  The principal, Mr. Dominguez, has over 30 years of school 
facilities planning experience, and our staff has considerable experience in dealing with a variety of 
issues related to school facilities.  
 
SSS is a school facilities consulting firm specializing in the identification, approval and acquisition of new 
K-12 school sites.  Since its inception, SSS has had contracted with over 150 school districts, county 
offices of education, charter organizations and private development companies. Our main function is to 
assess problems and coordinate specific studies to satisfy State school site approval regulations. We 
have steadily expanded our services to include educational and facility master planning and educational 
specifications.  In 2008, after extensive experience managing CEQA consultants on school projects, we 
were pleased to add CEQA compliance services to our own repertoire. We are also now offering the 
state and federal school facility eligibility and funding services of Ms. Bills-Dacong to our clients.  
Currently, we have already completed or are currently working on environmental documents for over 40 
school district projects for new and existing sites from Central to Northern California. 

SSS is located in the downtown area of Sacramento, California, near many of the State agencies involved 
in school facilities planning.  We work closely with the California Department of Education (CDE) on the 
approval of sites and plans.  We also coordinate with other governmental agencies such as the 
Department of Toxic Substances Control, State Allocation Board, Office of Public School Construction, 
State Division of Aeronautics, and local governmental agencies involved in the review and approval 
process of school facilities.  Being near these State agencies has made it possible for us to maintain a 
positive and productive working relationship with these agencies, increasing our level of expertise, and 
allowing us to continually move projects forward.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 37



 

Page 38



Page 39

namartinez
Typewritten Text
3a



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51

namartinez
Typewritten Text
3b



Page 52



Page 53

namartinez
Typewritten Text
3c



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58

namartinez
Typewritten Text
3d



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61

namartinez
Typewritten Text
3e



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Architectural Systems

P.O. Box 1092
San Martin, CA  95046 US
(408) 837-7689
cynthiaf@as-inc.com
www.as-inc.com

Estimate
ADDRESS

Gilroy School District

ESTIMATE # 5449.1
DATE 01/11/2022

  

ACTIVITY QTY RATE AMOUNT

Christopher High School New Security Pedestrian and Fire gates.

Location 1 : (Section crossing from gymnasium to pool) 
Includes core drilling & Installation of :
(3) sections of fence
(1)pedestrian gate 
(1)  Fire gate 
Fence is in one straight line but needs a small section of fence between the Fire gate 
and the Ped gate to prevent reaching through to engage the panic from the outside.  

Location 2: (East side of gymnasium to baseball backfield fence) 
Includes core drilling & Installation of :
(3) sections of fence
(1)pedestrian gate 
(1)  Fire gate 
Fence is in (2) lines but needs a small section of fence between the Fire gate and the 
Ped gate to prevent reaching through to engage the panic from the outside.  Section 
on grass to be made of biased panels 

Includes private utility location service prior to drilling. 
Pedestrian gates to have von duprin 99 series panic with Mammoth Self closing 
hinges.
Includes (1) knox padlock per fire gate and (1) knox box per ped gate.

1 58,602.00 58,602.00

 

Architectural Systems

Any Questions Please Call :

Chris Johnston

408.628.1347

TOTAL $58,602.00

Accepted By Accepted Date

Page 67

namartinez
Typewritten Text
3f

namartinez
Typewritten Text

namartinez
Typewritten Text
UPDATED: 10:30 A.M. 1/12/22 

namartinez
Typewritten Text

namartinez
Typewritten Text

namartinez
Typewritten Text



 

Item 3f: Additional fencing and gates at Christopher HS  

  

Screenshot from video footage from incident: 

 

Page 68

namartinez
Typewritten Text
3f

namartinez
Typewritten Text

namartinez
Typewritten Text

namartinez
Typewritten Text

namartinez
Typewritten Text



Page 69

namartinez
Typewritten Text
3g



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76


	1.14.22 FSC agenda 
	2A. Facilities ARC-On-Site Services Agreement
	2B. SPEC estimate_ Speed limiter
	2C. Luigi ES GUSD Proposal
	2D. Luigi ES Playground, Proposal
	2E. Facilities Application Proposal QB Gilroy USD 220107
	2F. Luigi ES CEQA oversight proposal
	3A. Gilroy HS Animal Damage Management
	3B. Glen View ES intercom speaker
	3C. Christopher HS pool chemical controler
	3D. Eliot ES kinder fence
	3E. Swanston PS fence improvements
	3F. Christopher HS fencing and gates 
	3G. Christopher HS locker repairs



